INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SPOCTO SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Spocto Solutions Pvt. Ltd. {the Company) which
comprises balance sheet as on 31st March, 2022, the statement of profit and loss for the year
ended and notes to the financial statements including summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of information and explanation given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required
and give true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and the profit for the year
ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the ‘Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements’ section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
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standalone financial statements, The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Going Concern assessment of the Company

Corona virus disease 2019 (‘COVID-19'), was declared a global pandemic by World Health
Organization. Governments around the world including India have been taking significant
measures to curb the spread of the virus including imposing mandatory lockdowns and
restrictions in activities. Consequently, the Company's manufacturing plants and offices also
had to be closed down for a considerable period of time, including after the year end.

These lockdowns have a significant impact on the overall economic activity in India. Hence, we
have identified our assessment of going concern basis of accounting as a key audit matter.

We have made enquires with the Management of the Company and also assessed the
disclosures made by them (See Note 26 of Notes to Accounts) to obtain sutficient appropriate
audit evidence in this area.

The Company has considered internal and external information while assessing recoverability
of its assets disclosed in the financial statement upto the date of approval of these financial
statements. Based on such assessment and considering the current economic indicators, the
Company expects to recover the carrving amount of these assets. Management has also
considered the impact of COVID-19 on the business for the foreseeable future and have
concluded that the Company has sufficient resources to continue as a going concern. The impact
of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements

Lockdowns in India for minimizing:the curb of this COVID-19, have a significant impact on
revenues, receivables, purchases including services and inventories at the year-end. Hence, we
have identified Impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements as a key audit
matter.

We have performed the following procedures to assess and evaluate the impact on financial
statements:

e Performed cut-off procedures for a larger sample of invoices during the lockdown period for
both domestic as well as export sales.

* Enquired with the Company on the manner of financial support (if any) provided to the dealers,
vendors and service providers; and their recognition in the financial statements.

e Enquired with the Company on any information on the liquidity position of any dealers; and
ascertained the need for any additional provisioning for impairment/credit loss in the financial
staterments.

» We assessed the disclosures on COVID-19 made in the financial statements.
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e Our ability to perform regular audit procedures has been impacted which has required us in
certain cases to perform alternative audit procedures and exercise significant judgment in
respect of the following :

Audit and quality control procedures which were earlier performed at client place which could
not be performed due to various restrictions like limited number of staff, social distancing.
Hence, alternative procedures have been performed based on inquiries (through phone calls,
video calls and e-mail communications) and review of scanned documentation sent through e-
mails, followed up with sighting with original documents.

Year-end inventory observation of inventory counts could not be performed..We have relied on
the management representation given on the position of inventory and its valuation.

Due to this lockdown, we have restricted to physically verify the Company documents like title
deeds, agreements, investment documents, notices, etc. We have relied on management
representation and also scan copies of extract of these documents provided by the management
wherever required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materials misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.




Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
staterments. :

As a part of an Audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, modify our opinion.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a g{!lng CONCEerT.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staternent that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) In our opinion there are no observations or comments on the financial transactions, which
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act.

g) The Company has been exempted from the requirements of its auditor reporting on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls (clause (i) of section 143(3));

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:




In

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and

to
L
ii.

iii.

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has not pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company has not any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be ‘transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Based on audit procedures and representations provided to us by the management, we
report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by
the company and as produced to us by the Management.

j) With respect to the Other Legal and Regulatory matters to be included in the Auditor's
Eeport in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
management has represented that other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (”Intermediaries”), with the
understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
ultimate beneficiaries.

it No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including

2) As

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ForR S

Kelkar & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 113342W

W
Rajendra Deshpande

Partner

Membership MNo. 104938
UDIN: 22104938AKOBROTEE9
Place: DOMBIVLI

Date: 24 May 2022 -



Spocto Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report - 31st March, 2022

(Refer to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Spocto Solutions Pvt. Ltd. of even date)

(i)  Inrespect of Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the property, plant & equipment.

As explained to us, the Company has a program for physical verification of fixed assets at
periodic intervals. In our opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Physical verification was
conducted only 20% of the Total Fixed Assets(Value) due to lack of time and Resources,
The discrepancies reported on such verification were not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account with an exception to an Asset, not physically
found which is to be written off.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided
to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and
buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken
on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

(ii) In respect of its Inventory:

As per the nature of business, the company has no inventory as on last date of the financial
year. Hence, reporting under such clause is not applicable to the company.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Hence, reporting under this
clause is not required.

(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Acts in respect of grant of
loans, investments and providing guarantees and securities as applicable. (Investment in
Mutual Funds)
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year and accordingly the question of complying with section 73 and
76 of the Companies Act 2013 does not arise. In respect of unclaimed deposits, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 74 and 75 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act. According to the information and explanations given to us, no Order
has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal on the Company.

The Company is out of the scope of maintaining cost records as per. Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and
records as produced and examined by us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amount pavable in respect of Income-tax, Goods and Service

Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st Ma rch, 2022 for a period
of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(c) There were no disputed statutory liabilities outstanding as on 31st March, 2022. Hence,

reporting under this clause is not required.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank or to debenture holders during the
year.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no significant fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore rules as per Nidhi Rules 2014 are not

applicable to them.

* .




(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is in compliance with sections 177and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year, the company has made a preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and the requirements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. The tunds raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. ;

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company

has entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors hence provision of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The company not is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

Whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business? Whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by
the statutory auditor?

For R 5 Kelkar and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 113342W

-_______.—-—-'-r
Rajendra V beshpande
Partner
Membership No. 104938
UDIN: 22104938 AKQBRQ7669
Place: Dombivli
Date: 24 May 2022
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Spocto Solutions Private Limited

Bakamce shieet as a1 51 March 2021
£AN amounes are i dndvon Bupees hakhe, excepd share dma and as sioved)

As at As at As ot
Note 31 March X022 31 March 2911 1 April X010
ASSETS
Non-current aiiers
Property, plast and equipment 4 200.50 1E.56 681
Right-of-use 1esets 5 25240 130.42 -
nher imangible assees [ 49556 154,00 ~ 10%Ed
Financial assets
Cither financial asscts 9 6217 0,50 1.3
Delurred 1 sssets 13 - 0,54 5 &
Tatal mon-current aisein 1,611.083 394,25 133.78
Carrent assets
Fmnamcial smsets
[nvestments T 13,0278 - -
Trade recervahles ] 1,606 53 23184 16348
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,327 87 23484 ill
Fank balanies other than these menboned in cash and cash 13 3061 - -
equivakents shove
Loans L3 603 160 ARG
Curremt Tax Assets (net) [} = 4958 26.10
Oher cmrent assets 14 74 56 1790 -
Totnl carrent assety 16,067 .68 54 16 139.55
Total &ssets 17.678.T1 [ ET] 7533
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Exquity share capital 15 304 100 00
Orher aquity 16 15,2004 {424.45) (STES)
Tutal equity 1520448 (421.45) (568.45)
Liabilities
Non-cmrrent linhilities
Financial Labilities
Lasss Laabilitics b ] 63484 9105 -
Pronvisiong ? 21 54.79 13,19 4.71
Dafierred Tas Lashilstics L 173 - -
Tatsl pos-asrrent liabilites 69138 104.24 471
Carrent liahilities
Fensncial lishilties '
Begrowings 1% . 66345 730,23
Lease Rabilites 19 234.B1 4672 =
Trade pavables 3
total cnssanding dues of micro and small enserpeises. - - -
total oulstendisg dues of creditors other than mizro and small enlerprses 1,23867 436,07 &0.55
Provisions i | 237 L RE -
Olver curren! babilities ke 4549 123 30 46.65
Curresi tax labilities (nef) b3 44,09 - -
Total corrent linbilities 1.TELRS 1,268 60 HY7.48
Toeal lahilies 1.474.23 137284 B41.16
Totnl equiry and liabilitics 17.67R.71 G5 17333
Sigmificamt accounting pol es 3
Thee movies referred to above form an intepral pant of these financisl sratemests
Az per our repon of even date aitached
Jur B 5 Kellar & Co fior amd o behall’ of the Board of Directors of
hartered Accountanms Spocio Solutions Private Limited
Firm's Regismation No. 113342W CIN: UT4993HZ020FTC LI TI18 =

e . . Puja
Partary Diresrar Direcior
Membership Mo 104038 DIM: 0524865 [CHM: 07641710 &
UDIN: 22104938 AKQBROTe6S
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumhai Flace: Mumbai
Dme: 24 May 2022 Dates 24 May 2022 [hate: 24 Moy 2022




Spocto Solutions Private Limited
Standalome Cash Flow Statement far the yvear ended March 31, 2022
GAN amownts gre o Dndvan Fupees in lakhs, except shore dota aond wiless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
CHERENAES Mareh 31, 2022 March 31,2021
A, Cash flow frem operating activities
Profit befare tax 134481 177.53
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amorization expenss 65,16 4374
Depreciation on right to use assets 11804 . 15.69
Firance cost 61.54 T4
Inerest income: (14.96) {0.46)
Profit on fermination of lease (8.39) 2
Owpersting profit before working capital changes 1,567.20 146,64
Adj for changes in working capital
(Increase) in financial assets {47.89) (Z7.34)
(Increase) in trade receivables (1,373.45) (117.20)
{Increase) in ciher assets {56 66) (17.940)
Increase in trade payables. E19.60 a2
Increase in other lahilities and provisions 146 .51 TS5
Cash ased in operating activities 1025 3] 53027
Income taxes paid, met of refunds [200.06) (4847}
Net cash used in aperating sctivities T65.25 481.80
B. Cash Maw from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {inchiding intanpible nssets) (345 E8) (150,05}
Proceeds from sale of property, pland and edquipment 1.95 -
Derccognition of lease 163 -
Inweatment in nmutual fands (net) (13.012.78) .
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivabents (25.91) -
Interest income 14.96 046
Ned cash used in investing sctivities {13.584.03) {149.58)
. Cash Mow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shane capital including secursties premium 15.615.00 . -
Finance cost (61 54) (7.14)
Principal payment of kease Hahilities (B0.77) (B54)
Lhilisation of securities premsdum i 1%17.42) =
Proceeds from' (Repayment of) barrowings, met . 1653 _45) (66 B0
Nt cash weed in fimancing activities 1389182 (EX.48)
[ Ml increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,073.0:4 249,73
E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning LR ] 511
F. Cash and cash squivalents at the end (D+E) 1.327.58 IS4 R4
Recanciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Bulance Sheet:
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - Refer Mote: 12 254 84 311
154.84 511
Cash and cash equivalests st the end
Cash and cash equivalents - Refer Note: 12 132787 15484
182787 154.34
Significant accounting policies (Refer nate 1 and 3)
The notes referred to above form an micpral part of standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor RS Kelkar & Co For amd on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accourlams Spocto Solutions Private Limited
Firny's Registration mo.. 113342W CIN: UT4999MH2OMPTCI3T918
= b L=
Mg
Rajend hpande wmeel Srivasiava Puja va
Pafiner Director . érector - M
Pelembership Mo, 104938 DM 5258693 [HM: 0764110
UL 22 1HMI3BAK QBROTO08 =
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal Flace: Muambsi
Diate: 24 May 2022 Date; 24 May 2022 Date: 23 May 2022




Spocto Solutions Private Limited
Stutement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AR amoumes are i fncdian Rupees Tobhs, excepy shave dara and as stated)

B Equity share capital

Note Mo of shares Amount
Habance as at | April 2020 15 ), ) )]
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated halance as at April 1, 2020 20,000 L0
Changes in cquity share capital during the vear 5 A
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15 20,000 100
Balance as at 1 April 2021 20, iy .00
Changes in equity share capital due W prior period ermors - -
Restated halance as at April 1, 2021 20,000 2.0
Chanpes in equity share capital during the year 10,410 104
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15 30410 3.4
b. Other equity
Attributable to the owners of the Company

Reserves and surplus Total

Securithes Retained

preminm carmings
Balance at | April H120 - {5T0.83) (5T083)
Changes in accouniing policy or prior period emors - - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 - {5T0.E3) {5T0.83)
Prafit for the vear - 147 85 147 RS
Remeasurement of delined benefit liability - {147y {1.47)
Taotal comprehensive ineome - 146,38 146.38
Transferred to retained earmings = = =
Balance at 31 March 2021 - (424.45) {424.45)

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Reserves and surplus Total
Securitics Retained
preni carnings
Balance at | April 2021 - {424.45) (424.45)
Chamges in accounting pelicy or prios period emars - - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2021 - 1424.45) {424.45)
Profit for the yeas - Q5012 950,12
Transferred to securities premium on issae aof equity shares ; 15.613.96 - 15,6139
Unilisation of securities prominm (917.42) - (91742
Remeasurement of defined beaedi liability - {20.77) (20,77)
Transferred to d earnings - o 5
BEalance at 31 March 2022 14.656.54 Sk 90 15.201.44
Significant accounting policics 3
The notes referred o above farm are an imegral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even daie attached
Jor RS Kelkar & Co for and an behalfl of the Board of Direcices of
Chartered Accrmtants Spocte Solutions Private Limited
Firm's Regestrabion Mo 113342W CIN: U30H TN 1 985PTCO24245
"_____.,-—""-. Pl 3
. G
Rajendra Deshpande Sumeet Srivastava Puja Srivgstava
Fartner Irecior Ahirecior
Membership No.: 1M938 DIM: D525B693 DIN: 07641710
UDIN: 221493 8AKOBRO 7669 f
Place: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2022 Drte: 24 May 222 Drate: 24 May 2022




Spocto Solutions Private Limited
Neodes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amownis are in Indian ¢ dakhs, excepd share data and as stoked)

o

Company Overview

Spocto Salutions LLP was incorporaied on 16 December 2016 as per provisions of LLP Act, 2008 LLP was convereted to private limited
company an 18 Febnmry 2020, Mow functioning as per provisions of Comganies Act. 2013 having regisiered office at Unit A, i Floor,
Techniphex 1, Techniplex Complex, app Veer Savarkar Flvover, Goregaon (East), Mumbai City, Maharashirs, India 400062,

The Comgany is ¢ ly engaged in the busi uf[i]pmvﬁmh:hrnlumrbmdcﬁginl&Hmmﬁmmuimmﬁmmh&ﬂ
including through artificial intelligence (AT) powered debt collection solutions via its platforms for sutomnated communication apd call centre
services such as Smart Collect and Smart Colleet Phus; (i) providing contact information about borrowers using digital data collecbion means
through the Trace. and (iii) operating @ webpage thar allows users 1o view their eredit score determined by a eredit rating agency (registered
under the Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2085} and make available peneral information fo facilitate credit related decisions
by the users. To carry on the husiness to provide services as o recovery agent and to give solutions for recovery of receivables by using
analytical and modern digital methods,

Basis of preparation

Statement of complinnce

The Compary’s financin! satements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) a8 per te Companics
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (ithe *Act”) and other relevant provisions of
the Act

The Company’s financial sawements up to and for the vear ended 31 March 2021 were prepared in accordance with the Companses
(Accounting Standards) Rubes, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act

Ag this is the Company's first financizl statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A%), Ind A3 101, First-
time Adogtion of Indian Accounting Standards has been applicd. An explanation of how the tansition 10 Iod AS has affected the provicusly
reparted financial pesition, financial performance and cash flows of the Company s provided in Note 38,

Thse financial statements were authorised for isswe by the Company s Board of Direciors on 24 May 2022,

Deetails of the Company™s aceounting policies are mchuded im Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

Temns includad in the financial statements of the Comparry are mensured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company opersies [‘the functional currency’). The financial sistements are presemed in Indian Rupee (INR), which 15 Company’s
fumnctional and presentation cusrency,

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees i lakhs, unless otheraise stated.

Basks of measurement

The Mnancial staternents have been prepared on the histonical cost hasis except for the following items

lTtems Measurement basis -

Certain financial assets and linhilities Fair value

Nt defined benefit {nset ) liability Fair value of plan ssets less present value of defined benefi obligations

Use of estimates and j

The preparation of the financial statemends in conformaty writh Ind AS requires management (o make sstimates, judgments and assumplions.
These estimates, judgments and assumplions affect the applicition of ting policics and the reponed s of assets and Linbilices,

the disclosures of contingent assels and liahiities at the date of the financial staiements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the perind. A:mngmmmﬁchr#ﬂmuwﬁﬂlnpeﬂﬁmﬁdmﬂumudiﬁwfmdnrum Estimates and
underiying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongping basis. Appropriate changes in estimaics are made as management becames aware of
changes in circurmstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in esti are reflected m the [ inl stak its in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 16 the financial statements.
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Basis of preparation {continued )

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information ohout assurnptions and estimation uncemainties that have a risk of resulting in o matenal adjustment in the year ending 31
March 2022 i3 included in the following notes:

~Mote 2 (C) and (D) ~ Exination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible sssels &
- Mote 20 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuanial assumptions

=Mote 33 = furr valuation of financial assets | linbility

= Mote 32 = recognition of deferred tax assets

= Mate 21 = recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

= Mate 33 — Impaimment of financinl assets

Measarement of fair values

A rumber of the Company’s accounting polickes and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, far both lnancial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.

The Company has an estshbished control framework with respect to the messurement of fair valess. The Company regulardy reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. IF third party infarmation is used to measure fair values, then the Company
assesses the evidence obtamed from the third parties 1o support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requanements of Ind AS,
including the bevel in the fair value hicrarchy in which the valuations should be classified,

Fair values are categarised imo different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techaiques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities.

Level 2. mnputs ather than quoted prices incloded in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liablny, either directly (ie. as prices) or
indirectly (1e. derived from pnces)

Level 3: inpuits for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unohservable inpuis).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or & lishility, the Company uses ohservable markst data as far a5 passible. If the inpats wsed o
measure the fair valus of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fur value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement i3
categorised in its entirety in the same kevel of the Fair value hieranchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entive measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hisrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
ooeurTed.

Further informatien ahout the assumptions made in mafum'lug fair vahses i3 included in Mode 33 = financinl instraments

Significant acconnting policies

Foreign currency transactions :

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of Campany at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or an average rate if the average rate approxemates the sctual rate af the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and linbilities denominated in foreign curmencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange mte at the
reporting date  Non-monetary assets and lighilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are ranslated o the functional
currency ot the exchange e when the fair valoe was determined. Mon-moneiary asscis and labilities that are messured based an bistorical
cost in & foreign curmency are trarslaied at the exchange rate gt the date of the transaction, Exchange differences are recognised in statement
of profit and loss.
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Finzncial indtruments

Recogniton amd iritiel measuremens

Trade receivahles issued are initially recognised when they are onginsed. All other financial assels and financeal Liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the coatractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial gsset or financial liability is initally measured ar fair value plus, for an item not 2t far value through profit and less (FVTPLL
transaction costs that are derectly atirchuatable to its acquisition or issue. =

Classiffcanion and sulbseqnent meassrement

Financial assets:

O initial recognition. a financial asset 15 classafied s measured sl
- amartised cost,

= fiir value through other comprehensive income [FVOCT)

- fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition, except i and i the pesiod the Company changes ity business
mudel far managing financial assets.

A fimancial assel is messured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

a) the asset is held within a business modsl whose objective i to bold assets to collect contractual cash (ows; and

I} the contractual terms of the financial astet give rige on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intersst on
the principal amount aastanding.

A debt investment is mensured ot fair valse through other comprehensive income if 1t meets both the following conditions and 15 not
desipnated as FYTPL:

a} the assel is held within & business model whose ehjective is achieved by both collecting contracrual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and

b} the comtractual 1erms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash (ows that are solely payments of principal and inderest an
the: principal amount cutstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity imvestment that is not hedd for trading, the Company may imevocably elect to presant subsequent changss
in the investment’s fair value in OCH (designated as FYOCT = oquity imvestmenth. This election is made on an investment by investment
hasis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured ai FVTPL. On indgal
mmgniﬁmﬂg(:mmmmahlymnmeMWRMMWWNmMWNMMM[
or 4 FVOC! 25 at FVTPL if doing so eliminaies or significantly reduces an acoourting mismaich that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Sulsequent measurement and gains and losses .

Financial assets at FVTPL These nssets are subsequently messured ar fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
imerest or dividend income, ane recognised in statement af profit and loss

Financial assets al amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured a1 amontised cost using the effecuve interest method
The amontised cost impairment Josses, Interest income, foreipn exchange gains and losses
and impai are recopnised in stal t of profit and loss. Any pain ar boss oa
derecognition is recogrised in statement of profit and boss.
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and bosses

Financial lisbilities are classified as measured &1 amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held for wrading or it is designated as such on initial recopnition. Financial lisbilities at FYTPL are measured at fais value and net gains and
Yosses, inchuding any interest expense, are recopnised in profit or lees, Oiher financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methnd. Inberest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and hoss.
Any gain or Inzs on derecognition is also recognised in stabement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets:
Tlgcm‘)uqdum@maﬁmiﬂmwmummwr@smuummnfmﬂwrmnlumcxpﬁt.uhms&nme
rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnershap of the financial
asset are transTerred o in which the Company neither transfers por retams substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
nat retain control of the financial asset. 1f the Company enters mio transactions wherehy it trnsfers asse1s recognised on its balance sheel,
but retains eitlver all or substantially all of the reske and rewards of the transfemed assets, the wransfierred assets are not derecognised,

Finaneial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a Financial Eability when its contractaal obligntions are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also
derecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this
case, & new financial lability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference berween the camying amount of the
firancial liability extinguished and the new financial Eability with modified terms s recagmized in statement of profit and loss

hifseiting

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount presenied in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Comparry
currently has a legally enforceable right 10 set off the amounts and il imends either to settle them on & net basis or (o realise the asset and
setile the liahility simulaneously.

Property. plant and oquipment
FRecognition and inifial mexurement
Tiems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less sccumulated depreciation and accumulaied impaimment losses, if amy.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comgrises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase s,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly artributable cost of bringing the item o its working condition for its intended wse.

If sigmificant parts of an item of propery, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate itemns
(majar components) of property, plan and equipment

Any gain or boss on disposal af an item of property, plam and equipment is recognised in stement of profit and loss

Transition te Ind AS

O transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected v continue with the camrying value of all of its property, plant and squipment recognised
s at | April 2020 measured &= per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and
equipmeni {also refer Note 38)

Subsequent expendiure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalissd only if it is probable that the future econamic benefits assocated with the expenditure will flow fo the

Comparny.
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Property, plani and equipment {continued )

i . .
Depresiation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equip less their d residusal values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipeent for the cusrend and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset catepory m““"_ﬂ“' m‘" mate of |y iseful life as per Schedule 11
Camputers and acoessories 3 years 3 - years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

CHTice equipment 10} years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amartized on a straight line basis over the useful Eife of the asset o the lease period whichever is lower,

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriste. Based on technical
evalution and conssquant advice, the management believes that its estimates of weful lives 15 given above best represent the period over
which management expaits 1o use these xssets,

Depraciation on additions {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date om whach asset & ready for use (disposed ofT)

Intangibbe assets

Recogmition and initial measurement

Intangible assets inclading those acquired by the Company arc initially measured at cost. Such imangible assess are subsequently mensured at
cost ke accurmubated amortisation ond any accummalsted impaimment losses.

Subseguent expendiare
Subsag) pend: = capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 1o which it relates.
Al ather expenditure, including expenditure on imterraily generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in siaiement of profit and loss as
incurned.

Amortisation
Amartisation is calculied 1o wrie ol the cost of intangible assets less their estimated ressdual values over their estimated uscful lives using
the straight-line method, and is inchuded in depreciation and amortisstion in statement of profit and loss

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Amset | Useful life |

Software | 5 years | ;

Amonisation method, wsefial lives and residual values are reviewed ai the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriste

Tmperirment af financlal axsets y
The Comparry recognises loss allowances for expected credit bosses on financial assets measured at amornised cost.

At each reporting dase, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried 8t amortised cost are credit impared. A financial asset is
“credit impaired” when one ar more events that have a deirimenial impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
ocrurred

Evidence that  financial asset is credit impaired inchudes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the bormower or ssuer,

-a breach of contract such as & defzull or past dues for 180 days or more;

= the resmucturing of a koan of advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider atherwse,
= it is probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial reorganisation, of

- the disappearance of an active market for 8 security because of financial difficulies.
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e irment {continwed
Lass allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal 10 ifistime expected credin bosses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credil loses that result from all possible defaull events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-maonth expected credit losses ane the portion of expeeted credit bosses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months
afler the reparing date (or a shorter perind if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Tn all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit boases is the maximum contractual penod over which the
Company 15 exposed wo credit nsk.

When determining whether the credit risk of @ financeal asset has increased significantly since initinl recognition and when estimating
expecied credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undus cost ar
effart. This includes both quantitative and qualitotive information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and mformed
credit assessment and including forward leoking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significandly 1f n 15 more than 130 days pasi duc.

The Company considers a (mancial asset to be in default when:

- the bortower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations %o the Company in full, withow recourse by the Company to actions such s realring
security (if any is held; or

= the financial asset is 180 days or more past due.

Measurement of expecied credif losoes

Expected credit losses are & probability weighted estimase of credit losses. Credit losses are measurod as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Campany expects 1o receive])

Presentation of allowanct for expected credit bosses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducied from the gross carmying amousd of the assets.

Write-pfT

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is wntten of) (either panially or in full} to the exent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is penerally the case when u&uwwdﬂmmwmm&bw does not have ase1s or sources of income that could
gencrate sufficient cash flows o repay the amounts subject io the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could sill be
subjeet to enforcement activities in order fo camply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounis dee.

Emplovee benefits

Short-tere emplovee benefits :

Lazhbilities for wages and salaries, incloding non-manetary benefits that are expected 1o be ssitled whally within 12 months afier the end of
the pericd in which the emplovees render the related service are recognised in respect of emplovess” services up o the end af the reporting
and are measured at the amounts expected 1o be paid when the lishilities are setded. The Kabilitics are presented as cusrent employee benefit
ohligatrons in the balance sheet

Defimed congribution plows

A defined comtribution plan is a past-employment berefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions ino a separate entity and will
have o begal or constructive obligathon 1o pay further amounts. The Company makes specifisd monthly comributions sowards Govermnment
administered provident fund scheme, Obligations for contributions 1o defined contribution plans are recogrised as an emplayes benefit
cxpense in statement of profit and loss m the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is avarlable.
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iii} Defined benefit plans

wl

i defined benefits plan i a post-emplovment henefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Compary’'s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplovees have eamed in the
current and prior pericds, discounting that amount and deducting the fair valwe of any plan asscts.

The ealeulation of delined benefit abligation is performed annually by a quahified actuary using the projected unit credut method. When the
calculation results in a potential assel for the Compary, the recognised asset is limited 1o the present value of econcmic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions 10 future contributions 1o the plan {“the ass ceiling”), In arder w calulats the
present vahue of economic benefits, consideration is given Lo any minimem funding requirements.

Rerneasrement of the piet defined benefit lighility, which compnse actuarial gains and lossss, the retum on plan assets (excluding inerest)
and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCL The Company determines the net interest expense /
{inceeme) an the net defined benefit Nabilrty / (asset) for the period by applying the discount mate used 1o measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefin liability / (asset], taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit lizbility .'[mm}duiumepuindaﬁamaunmhrﬁmwmmmm.Nﬂilmm:tupenuauﬂulwtxpm
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and los.

When the benefits of 2 plan are changed or when a plan is curiailed, the resulting change i benefit that relates 1o past ssTvice {“past service
cost’ of “pust service gain’) or the gain of koss on curtailment is recognised immedimicly in statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognises gaims and hosses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the setilement oocurs.

Ohiver lomp-tevm employee bemeffor

The Company's net abligation in respect of long-term employee benefits aiber than post-empleyment benefits 15 the amount of future benefit
that enployees have camed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit 15 discounted to determine itz present
value, and the fair value of any related assets it deducted. The obligation is | on the hasis of an anmsl independent aciuarial
valuation using the projected unit credis method. Remensurements pains or Insses are rocopnised in statement of profit or loss in the perind in
which they arise.

Pravisions (sther than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, 38 & result of a past event. the Company has a present legal or constractive oblipation that can be estimated
relsably, and it is probable that an owflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash fows (representing the best estimate of the expenditare required 1o settle the present obligation at the
bhalance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific v the lishility.
The unwinding af the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected futare aperating bosses are not provided for.

Revenue
The Company has adopied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers’ with effect from | April 2020 using the remospective
appronch There is na significant impact on Company's profit after tax afier adoption of Ind AS 115

Revidering of services .
Reverue from rendering of services is recognized upon transfer of control of promissd services 1o Customers in an amount that reflects the
considerntion expected 1o be received in exchange for those services.

The amount of revenus 1o be recognized (ransaction MEe}hMmMMﬂkmmﬁmhmw-umme
excluding nmounts colbected on behall of thind parics such as goods and service tax of other taxes directly linked 10 sales. If & comme
contains more than one performance obligation, the transaction price is albocated 1o each performance phligation based on their refative stand-
alone selling prices. Revenue from rendering of services are recorded net of allewances for estimated rebates, cash discourts and estimates
ufp-udmm‘wm,alolwhl:hmmaﬂis}wdimﬁmeufﬂu.

mmmﬁmmmummmuhmmmmmﬂarednmlmml!lmﬂ:mdd‘r}t last invescing 1o
the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revence.
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H. HRevenue contimaed)

il Inderest fncome

Interest income o expense is recognised using the effective imerest method. The ‘effective inferest mie’ 15 the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash paymenis or feceipis theough the expected Iife of financial nstrument Lo
= the gross carrying amourt of the financinl nsset; or

- the amartised cost of the financial Hability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied 1o the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the sset s
not eredit-impaired | or to the amortised cost of the liablity

Leases

The Company evaluates if an asrangement qualifies %o be a lense as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a lease requares
sipnificant judgment The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease serm (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate

The Company deterrnines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of 2 lease, wgether with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably centain to exercise that aption; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease 1f the Company
is ressonably certain nol to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonsbly certain 1o exercise an option to extend &
lease, of nof to exercise an option b ferminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumsances that create an econamic incentive for
the Company o excreise the aption 1o extend the lesse, of nol to exencise the option to terminate the lease. The Comparry revises the lease
term if there 15 a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally hased on the incremental borrowing rave specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfoloe of leases with
sirmilar charactersiics.

The Company has adogted the above standard using modified retrospective approach.

Right-of-wse asset (ROLT):

The right-of-use asset is initally measured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, any tnitial direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimae of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying nsset or 10 restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is Jocated less any leass meentives received.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying cost model, which 15 Cost less any accurnulated
depreciation and any accurmvulaed impainment. Right-of-use asset is depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to
ithe end of the lease term. 2

Lense linbility:

Lease liability is initially measured 21 the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the ment dute. D ing &5 done
using the company's incremental borrowing rate. Incremental borrowing rate is determined haged on enlity's borrowing rate adjusted for
terms of the lease and tvpe of the asset leased Leass payments included in the measurement of the kease Lability comprises of fixed
paymeris (including in subsmance fived payments),

Lease labality iz measured af amortised cost wsing the effective interest method. Lease |mability is re-measured when there is a change in the
lense term. @ change in its assessment of whether 1 will exercise a purchase, extension or fermination option of a revised mesubstance fixed
lease payment, a change in the ameounts expected 10 be pavable wnder a residual value guaranice and a change in fisture Jeass payments
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Recognition of i L i OF EXp
Trrterest mumemexpemﬂsn'tnwmed using the effective interest method.

The “effective inerest rate” is the rate that exactly discourts estimated future cash pavments or recespts through the expected life of the
fimancial instrurment b

- the gross camying amount of the financial axset; or -

= the amortised st of the financial lability.

In cabeulating interest income and expense, the effective imerest rate is applied 1o the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the assetl
not credit-impaired) of to the amortised cost of the hability, However, for linancial assets that have become credit-impaimed subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income i calculsted by applying the effective interest rate o the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the xsset
is no longer credii-impaimed, then the calculation of interest income reverts o the gross hasis,

Income tax
Ineame 1ax cormprises current and deferred tax. R is recognesed in staement of prafit and loss except 1o the extent that it refates w a busmess
combination or 10 an nem recognised direcily in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Crrrent fax

Current tax camgrises the expecied tax payable or reccivable on the taxable income ar ks for the year and any adjustment 1o the tax payable
of receivahle in respect of previous vears The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected 1o be paid or
received ofier considering the uncertnmty, if any, related 10 income tmes. It is measured using tax rabes (and tax laws) enscted of
substantively enscled by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable nght 1o se1 ofT the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and seftle the hability on a oel basis o simultansmusly.

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax is recognised in respeet of temporary differsnoss between the carrying smounts of asscts and liabiliies for financial reporting

P and the corr L A = used for ¢ [PUTPOSES,

D:lmadmﬁsm“mmdmﬂemmﬂm:Lupfnbnbiemfmutumbkpmﬁﬁwﬂlbemwlubhmwwhmmhmei
Deferred tax assets — enrecognised or recognised. ane reviewad at cach reporting date and are recognised! reduced to the oxtent that it is
probable’ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured ot the tax rates that ane expected to apphy to the period when the asse is realised or the lishility is ssttled, based on
the laws that have been enacted o substantrvely enacied by the reporting date.

Thie measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follew from the manner in which the Compamy expecis, o the
reporting date, 10 recover o settle the camying amount of 15 assets and Labilities,

Dieferred tax assats and labiliies are offset if there is a legally enforceable right so offset cument tax labilrbes and assets, and they relase o
income taxes bevied by the same tax suthority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to setile cument tax
lizhilities and assets on & net basis or their tax osscis and liabilities will be realssed somullancously.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the barrowsng of funds. Bamowing costs direstly sttribusable 1o
acquisition ar eonstruction of an aset which ily take a sul ial period of time {0 get ready for their intended wse are capitalised a5

part of the cost of that asset. Other barrowing costs are recognised a5 an expense in the period in which they ane incurred.
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(AN amownrs are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share daia and as stated)

ML

i}

Segment reporting

Ciperating segments ase reporied in & manner consistent with the internal reporing provided 10 the Chief Operating Decision haker
(CODM) of the Company. The CODM is respansible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the
Company. For the disclosure on reponable segments (see note 37)

Cash and cash equivalents -
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cheques in hand. bank balances, demand depasits with hanks
where the original matusity is three months or bess and other shon term highly liquid investmens.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is caleulated by dividing:

a the profit afributable to owners of the Company

b. by the weighted average mumber of equity shares cutstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

Dilieted earnings per share

Diluted carning per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share fo take inlo account:

o. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associzted with dilutive potential equity shares, and

b, the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares

Provisions, Contingeit Liabilities snd Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognived only whea:

(i} The Company has a present obbigaton (legal or constructive) as  resull of a past evens;

(it} It is probable that an eutflow of resources embodying economic benedits will be required to setile the ohligation, and
(i} A reliabie estimate can be madie of t amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimaied 10 setile the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is matenal,
the carmying amount af the provision i the present value of those cash Nows.

Coniingent Hability is disclased in case of
{i) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requered 10 senle the obligation;
or

(i) A present obligation ansing from past events, when o reliable estimaic is possible,

Whene the unavoidable costs of mesting the obligations under the contract excesd the sconamic benefite expected 1o be received under such
contract, the present obligation under the contract is relognised and measured a5 @ provision.
Contingent Aizers:

Contingent assets are not recognised in the linancial staiements.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
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4 Properiy, plant and equipmsnt
(See accounting policy in Note 3(C1)

Reconciliation of carrying amnunt
FParticulars Leasehold Office Computers and  Furniture and Tatal
Improvements  Equipments BCCESROTIES Mixures

Ciost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount) >

Ralance at 1 April 2020 - - 4.22 159 6 81
Additions - - 18,50 1.75 3025
Balamce at 31 March 2021 - - 32.72 4.34 31.06
e —— e

Balance at 1 Aprl 2021 - = nmn 4.34 37.06
Additions 60.62 251 T9.75 36,59 19647
Drisposals - - 7.37 286 10.23
Balamce at 31 March 2022 G652 11.51 10510 3807 12630
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2020 = 1 = , 5
Diepreciation for the year - . I 0.33 LR
Dizposals - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 - - 7.77 0.33 f.10
Baksnce at 1 April 2021 - . 7 0.33 §10
Depreciation for the year 4.51 073 18.40 1.92 15,58
Dhigpasals - - .28 100 i.28
Bulamce ut 31 March 2021 4.51 .78 15.90 1.25 15,40
Carrying amount (net)

Asal ] Apnl 2020 - - 4.22 259 681
As st 31 March 2021 = . 14.95 401 28.94
As at 31 March 2022 56.11 11.76 &6, 20 36.82 200,90

Notes:

&) There are no borrowing costs capitalised on property, plant and equipment during the year and previous year.
b)) There are oo immovable property in the name of the Cognpany.

c) There are no assets held by third pasties, 5

d) There are no capital commitments for the Compary.
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5 HRight of use assets

Gross Block Buildings Total
Balance at 1 April 2020 - 5
Additions 149,11 148011
[risposals - -
Balamee at 31 March 2021 14911 149.11
Balance at 1 April 2021 14811 14811
Additions QIB.41 G241
Lispasals s (1036 44) {108 44)
Balance at 31 March 2022 D640 69,08
—
Accumulated deprecistion
Balsnce at 1 April 2020 = -
Depreciation for the year 1869 18,68
Diisposal u -
Balance at 31 March 2021 18,69 18.69
Balance a1 1 April 2021 18 64 18,69
Diepreciation for the yeas 118.40 11840
Disposals (2041} {210.41)
Balance at 31 March 2022 116.68 116.68
Carrying amount {net)
Asar | Aprl 2020 - -
Agat 31 March 2021 15042 130 42

As ut 31 Murch 2022 B52.40 HEL )
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& Intangible asselts
{See accounting policy in Note D))

Reconcilisgtion of carrying amannt

Particulars Computer Total
sofrware
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying ameunt}
Balamce as at 1 April 2020 109 83 109,83
Additions 119,80 119.80
Disposals = -
Balance as at 51 March 2021 11963 229.63
Balance as ot 1 April 2021 119.63 119.63
Additions 350.41 350.41
Dispoaals - -
Balance as af 31 March 2022 SR04 SR04
Accumubated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2020 - -
Amortisation for the 3563 35.63
Balance as ai 31 March 2021 I563 35.63
Balance as at 1 April 2021 563 3563
Amortisation for the year 48 BS 48.85
Balance as at 31 March 2022 84,48 8448
Carrying amount {net)
Asat 1 April 2020 1089 83 109 83
As at 31 March 2021 19400 194.00
495,56 495.56

As at 31 March 2022
— T

MNuotes:
a) Internally generated intangible assets - Mil (31 March 2021: Nil; 1 April 2020 Mil)
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Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(AN amaumis are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except shave data and as stated)

Year ended Year ended

Note 31 March 2011 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 25 5,700.05 1,386 98
Other incarme 26 2644 14.28
Total income 5,726.49 - 1,401.26
Expenses
Cost of services 27 1,383.93 46069
Employee benefits expense . 201437 50051
Finance costs 25 6l.54 714
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 184.20 6242
Oiher expenses 31 T317.64 192.97
Total e1penses 438168 1,223.73
Profit before tax 1,344.81 17753
Current tax 385.00 24.50
Deferred tax {henefity charge 969 518
Imcome tax expense 32 394.69 29.68
Profit for the year 950.12 147.88
Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability/ (assets) (27.76) (L8N
Income tax relating 1o itema that will not be reclassified subsequently w profit of loss 6.99 0.50
MNet other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently o (20.77) {1.47)
profil or lass
Total comprehensive income for the year ’ 82935 146,38
Earnings per share: 17
Basic and diluted earmings per share ([NR) 4,524, 76 73925
Significant accounting polseies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor RS Kelkar & Co for and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ckcm'crrd ,Icrum{r.lnu Sﬂtll Salutions Private Lﬂﬂ'?d
Firm's Registration Mo. 113342W CIN: V749990 H2020FTC337918

Rajendra Deshpande Sumeet Srivastava

Fartrer Direcior

Membership No.: 104938 DI 03258693 DIN: 07641710
UDIN: 22104938AKQBROQT66S

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2022 Duie: 24 May 2022 Duate: 24 May 2022
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Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
7 Investmenis
Current investments
Investments measured st FYTPL
Investments in mutual funds

4,127,680.947 units (31 March 2021: Nil & 1 April 2020: Nil) of 1CICT 1302.78 - -
Prudential Mutual Fund
1301278 - z
Agpgregate amount of quoted investments 13012.78 - -
Apgregate marked value of quoted mvestments 1301278 - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - = -
8 Loans
Loan to employvees, Unsecured
Considered good 603 1.0 4,86
Significam incrense in Credit Risk - - -
Credil impaired - - -
Less: Loss Allowance 2 " C
5,03 L0 4.86
Mon-cusrent - - =
Curment 603 1.0 4.86
603 L 486
9 Other Financial Asscts
Unsecured considered pood
Security depasits 6217 39.90 11.50
BLIT 39,90 11.50
Mom-curnment 6217 3990 11.50
Currem - = =
62,17 39,90 1150
10 Current Tax Assets (net)
Advance incame L, net of provisions - 49 58 26.10
- 49.58 26.10
— ==
11 Trade receivables
(See accounting policy in Mote 3(H)}
Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - secured - - -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 161182 23237 121.18
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk = = =
Trade receivables - credit impaired - = -
1,611.82 13837 121.18
Laoss allowance
Less: Loss allowance 529 5.53 17.70
Net trade receivables L6D6.53 213184 103.48
Mon=current - - -
Current 1,60653 23284 103 48
I&H 13184 105,48

The Company's exposure i credit and currency risks, and loss allowances relating 1o trade receivables are disclosed in note 33.
() OF the above, trade receivables from related parties are a3 below:

Tatal rade receivables from relited partics el S - -
Loss allowance - = 2
Net trade reccivables 34.77 - -
(b} Movement in Joss allowante on trade recelvables
Oipening balance 553 17.70 - =
Amount writlen off = - =
Lasgs allowance (024} {1217) 17.70

Claging balanee 519 5.53 17.70
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11 Trade receivables (continued )
(¢} Apeing schedule

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Not due l;ﬂ‘;l:g " r::_:::' " 1-2vears 2.3 years it '::i': Tuotal
Undisputed Trade receivables
(i) Considered good 138702 22181 2,00 - = . 151183
{i7) Which have sigmificanl increase in = x 5 4 = X i
credit sk
{iif) Credit impaired - - - - - . -
Unbilled dwes - - - = = - -
Tuotal 135702 22181 299 . = - 1.411.82
As ot March 31, 2021
Particulars Dutstanding for follewing periods
Notdug 2% than 6 "";'“,_:_r 1dyesn  3dyan O ‘;:: Total
Undisputed Trade receivables
(i) Considered good 188,78 879 10,80 . - . 23837
(i) Which have significant mcrease in - = = = = - =
credal risk
(1) Credit impaired . - . - - . .
Unbilled dues - - - - = = -
Total 18578 3879 1080 - - - 13837
A at April 1, 2020
Particulurs Outstanding for following periods
Less than & months - More than 3
Nt due S e 1-1 years 21-3 years o Total
Undisputed Trade receivables
(i) Considerad good 1458 8616 10.44 - - . 121.18
{i1] Which have significant increase in - - - . - - -
credit nsk i
(ili} Credit impaired S E . - - . =
Unbilled dues & = - - = = =
Total 2458 816 10.44 - - - 12118
Asat Asat Aszat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

12 Cash and cash lnql'lr.llmu

Balances with Banks
in Current Accounts 31924 25484 511
Bank deposits with maturity kess than three months 1,08 63 - =
1.327.87 25484 511
13 Bank balances other than those mentioned in cash and cash equivalents above
Bank deposts with matusity more than three months bt bess than fwehve months 3001 - -
39,91 - -
14 Oeher current assets
Unsecured, considersd good
Prepaid expenses 69.59 6,65 -
Advance o suppliers 1.64 - -
Onbers 3.33 11.2% -
T4.56 17.90 -

= This space is imenrionally left blask=
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Asat As Asmt
31 March 2022 31 March 2031 1 Aperil 2020

15 Equity share eapital

Authorised
20,000 (31 March 2021: 50,000 & 1 Apel 2020 50,000} oquity shares of R 10 each .00 5.00 5 0
Lssmed and subscribed cxpital
0,410 (30 March 3021: 20,000 & 1 April 2020 20,000} equity shares of Re 10 each, fully paid up 104 2.04 200
Issmed, subseribed and paid up
M A10 (3 March 2021: 20,000 & 1 April 2020 20,0004 squity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up .04 2.0 200
a) Recenciliation of shares ding at the beginning and af the end of the vear
Ag at 51 March 3023 Ax wi 31 March 2021
Mumlbser of Amount Mumber of Amount
shares shares

Eiqguity shares
At ihe commencement of the year 20,010 2,00 20,000 100
Shares issued during the year 10410 104 = -
At the end of ihe year 410 1M 20,0001 L

by Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has oaly one class of dhares refemed 1o a5 equity shares having a per value of Bs 10 cach.

Each holder of the equity shase, as reflected in the records of the Company a6 of the date of the sharcholders messing, is entitled fo one vole in respect of each
share held for all matters ssbmitted 1o vote m the sharcholders timg. The C Jeclares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividens propased by
the Board of Dhmectors is subject ko the appeosal of the ﬁmhu:-ldcrl in the Annual G:nerl] Meeting

In the evemt of Liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive any of the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution
of amounts payabile o prefereace shareholders. However, no such preference shares exist currently, The distributicn wall be in proportion (o te number of
eduity shares beld by the sharcholders.

¢} Shares held by holding companyfultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries | associates

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As a1 | 220
Mumber of %% of helding Number of % of holding Number of % of holding
shares shares shares
Halding company
Credsvenue Private Limirsd V22810 75.01% . = - 5
1&-[{! ?&DI% - = = -
d)) Particulars of shareholders holdisg more than 5% shares of a class of shares
As at 31 March 1012 As at 31 March 2021 ¥ As at | April 2028
Numberof % of equity Numberof % of equity MNumber of e of wquity
shares shares shares shires shares shares
Credavenue Provale Limited 22800 T301% . 0.00% = 0 00%
Sameet Srivastava 1410 14.50% 11024 35.02% 15,000 75.00%
Puja Srrvastova - 0.00% 34875 18.38% 5,000 25.00%
Sandhya Thai - 0.00% 2700 13.50% . 0.00%%
Bhiavin Parekh = (%% 1 40 BO0% - 00075
217.220 B9.51% 1899 S50, 20000 100.00%
¢} Particalars of shares held by premoters at the end of year
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at | April 2020
Number of % of equity Number of % of equity Number of s el equity
shares sharis shares shares shares shares
Sameet Srivasiaa 4410 14.50% 11024 55.12% 15,000 7500
Puja Srivastava 1470 483% 3673 18.28% 5,000 25007
Bhmin Parekh 640 1.10% 1401 B00% = 0.0
ﬂl 21.44% IE” A1.50% 200, () LY

f) There ase no bonus shares or buy-hack of shares or shares issued for consideration cther than cath durmg 3 pericd or five years immedistely preceding
limancial vear ended 31 March 2022,
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16 (rther equity
Cither equity consists of the following
Az at Asat
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securires premim
Al the commensement of the year - -
Add: Premium received on shares ssaed 15613 96 -
Less: Unilisation of secunties premium 1917.42)
Al the end of the vear Ay 14,6%6.54 -
Retained earmings
At the commencement of the year (424, 45) (57083
Add: Profit for the year 950,12 14638
Less: Remeasurement of defined benefit hability {20.77) -
At the end of the year {8 S04,%0 {424.45)
Tatal nfalhn=uh'r [C )= {AFHB) 15,200, 44 {42445y

Description of reserves

a) Securithes premiom

Thee amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as securities premium,
by Retained enrmings

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulaed eamings of the Company.

17 Earmings per share (EFS)

Basic and diluted earmings per share
The calculation of hasic eamings per share i baed on profit attribatable o ordinary sharcholders and wesghted-average namber of ordinary shares outstasding
as follows:
Year ended Vear emled
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit attnbutable to the equity sharsholders of the Company 950,12 147 85
Weighied average rurmnber of equity shares (nos. is lakhs) 0.21 0.2
Basic per share (EPS) 4,524.76 739,28
Profit anributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 95012 147 &5
Wieighted average rumber of equity shares {nos. i lakhs) .21 2
Diluwied earnings per share (EFS) i 4,524,768 73928
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
18 Barrowings
{See accoumbing policies in note 3N g
Umsecured
Loans from related pantics - 653 45 TA025
Tatal current berrowings - G463 4% '.l'][l_li

MNature of security and terms of repayment for long-term berrowings

Unsecured interest free loan was given by promosers and the same was setiled by the company dusing the year

a) Sumeet Srivastava - 31 March 20220 Nil (31 March 2021; INR 489,39 Lakhs ; 1 Agril 2020- INR 583.34 Lakhs)
b} Puja Srivastana » 31 March 2022: Nil {31 March 2021: INR 9080 Lakhs ; 1 April 2020; INR 93.75 Lakhs)

) Sandhya Thali - 31 March 2022: Wil (31 March 3021 INR 74.26 Labhe ; 1 April 2020: INR. 53,16 Lakhs)

1% Lease Linbillities As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Lease Liabilities (refer note 34) &E9.65 137.77 -
864,65 137,77 =
Mem=current 634 &4 BL05 -
Current 1481 46.72 -
869,65 137.77 5
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20 Assets aml liabilities relating to employee benefits
{See asccounting poliches in note 3G
As at Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 I.gl'ﬂm
Met defined henefit asset - Gratty Plan = = =

Total Employee benefit asset % - £
et defined benefit liabiity - Grafuity plan 2716 13.35 4.71
Total employee benefit linbilities 5716 13.35 AT
Mon-current 54.79 1318 471
Cuament 137 016 -
5716 13.35 4.71

The Company operates the following post-employment defined beneffi plans.

The Company has o defined benefit gratuity plan in India, grvered by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered o
least five years of continucus service, 1o grabaity at the rate of fifteen duys wages for every compheted year of service or pat thereof in excess of six months,
hased on the rate of wapes last draws by the employes concemned

These defined benefit plans evpose the Company to achsarial risks, such s lomgevity fisk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market (mvestment) risk.

A Reconciliation of the met defined benefit (asset) linbility
Thue following table shows a reconciliafion from the opening balances 1o the closing halances for the net defined benefit (asset) habliy and 08 compoments.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Rexonciliation of present value of defined bemefit

Balance at the begirming of the year 1335 a7l
Benefits pad - -
‘Current service cist 1517 638
Imberest cosl .58 028
Actuanial bosses recopmised in other comprehensive mocome = ¥
chianges in fnancial assumpticas {1.71) 1081y
experience adjustments L} 188
Oitheers {0.02) -
Balance at the end of the vear 5T.16 1335
Net defined benefit liability AT.16 1335

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

B. i. Expense recogmised in profil or boss i

Current senvice cost 1517 6.3%

Inferest cost 0 B8 0.28
1605 6,66

i, Remessurement recopmised in other

Actuarial {gain ) koss oo defined benefit obligation 27.78 1.57
778 LST

. Defimed benefit oldligations

i Actuarial sssumprions

Prl.(w actuarial assumptions st the reporting date (expressed as hﬂllﬁd AVEFHEEs]:
Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2032 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

Discouni rate 6005 6.5T% 6.57%
Fuhare salary growth 12.00% 12.00% 12000
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00% 100075
il. Bensitivity analysis
Vear ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 3021
Increase Dhecrease Increase [hecrease

Dhseount rate | 1% mosemmimnt) 546 {4.68) 179 (149
Futare salary growth (1% movement) 344 {3.05) 164 (1.42)
Amrition rate (1% movement) 1.68 (1.51) 0.96 10.84)

Alshough the analysis does not take accoust of the Full disiribution of cash flows expected usder the plan, it docs provide an approximation of the senstrvty of
the msamptions shown paes
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Non-turrent Currest
31 March 2033 31 March 2021 01 April 2020 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
11 FProvisions
(See mmgpﬂﬁdﬁ im 3G
Provision far employes hemefits {refer node 200
Granairy 54.79 13.19 4.71 1357 016 0,00
Tutal S4.79 1519 4.71 137 .16 LEC
12 Carrent tax Babilities (net) ¥
Prosasson for e, net of acvnce tax = = = a4.08 - -
Total - = = 4409 = -
13 Trade payables As at As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 40) - . -
Total cutstanding disss. of creditors other thas micre and small enterprses 1,255 &7 41807 6055
125567 43607 &0.55
The Company's expesure 10 currency and iquadity risk relsting to made payebles are disclosed i nate 33.
a) Apeing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for follewing periods
EaticnE Neldue LOSOML o 3yan MR Tatal
year years
Undisputed dues
iy MEME - . - - - -
(i) Ovhers 111554 13295 021 - = 1218570
Disputed dues
(i) MSME - - - - - -
{n) Cthers - - = a & =
1 mhbilled duses - = - - = -
Tuoial 1,115.584 134,95 .21 = - 1,255.70

As at March 31, 2001

Cutstanding for following periods

Particalirs Teas Ma
Piat du hanl e 23yon o e Tutal
’ YiEar Years

Undisputed dues
(i) MSME = . 5 = 4 5
(i) Oxhers 361.94 2.4 ] - = 436.07

Disputed dues
(1 MSME - - - . - .
{ii} Ohers - - e - - =

Unbilled dues E = = = = -
Total 36154 T4 1.8% - - 436,07

As st April 1, 2020

Outstanding for fellowing perinds
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
hd

Not due 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Ear ____Ycars

Undisputed duss
(1) MSME = = = & & %
(i) Cxhers 56.35 1,60 060 - - [ E LY
Dispuied dues
(1) MSME = = = = = =
(i} Cnhers - - - - - .
Unbilled dwes - - - - - <
Tatal S35 .6l 064 - = .55

24 (vber current liabilities

Statutory duss payables 16502 " P 166
Employees benefils payvable 047 74 B0 2544
Payables 1o relwed parties 1188 - -
Oiher payakles 254 - 1345
14291 13220 A665
H-
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

25 Revenue from operations
[See sccounting policy in Moie J1))

Rendering of services 570005 138698
Tatal revenue fram operations £.700005 . 138698
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred al a podnt in ime 5. T0HL08 138698
Taotal revenue from contracts with customers E.T00.05 1. 38658
Contract halances:

Trade receivables {refer noie 11) 1.606 53 3284

26 Oher income
Inleres) meome on

bank depasits (a1 amartised cost) 14,56 0
Onhers 246 045

Prodit on termination of lease 30 -
Net gain on foreign currency ransactions = 036
Impairmnent loss reversal 024 12.16
Cther nan-opeTating meome 0,39 085
16,44 14.28

27 Cost of services

Drata as a Service 15.82 528
Digital Media Cost 91792 27452
Direct Consubancy Expenses 35673 143,57
Infrastructure Cost E3.90 17.98
hers 956 19.34
1 093 46065

24 Emploves benefiis expense

{See accounting policy in Mote 3G .

Salaries, wages and bonus 1.796.57 475.87

Contribution to provident and other funds 77.55 11.65

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 16.05 667

Staffl welfars expenses 12420 6.32

201437 54151

2% Finamce costs

(See accounting policy in Mote YN

Inderest on finencial linbilities measurad 21 amartized cost 576 -

Interest on lease liabines (refer noge 34} 51.78 714

61.54 T4

A Depreciation and Amortisation expense

(See accounting policy in Mote 3CWxii) and 3(Dxi))

Depreciation of property, plast and equipament 17.31 & 10

Depreciation of righs-of-use assets (refer pote 34) 11804 18 69

Amartsation of infangible assets 4883 3563

184,20 62.42
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(AN amowrts are in Mndian Rupees lakir, except share dote and ax sianed)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2021

31 Diber expenses

Rend 5146 2269
Power and fuel 2569 4.68
Fentes and taxes 6B 49 4 317
Auditors’ Remuneration {refer note 31.1) 200 2400
Insusance 1049 Lo

Repaws and mainienance
- (rthers £6.07 2199
Advertising and Marketing 10,48 18,70
Busimess Promotion 167 0.67
Commizsion expenses 1228 1.26
Travelling and conveyance T304 1813
Communication costs 20.87 334
Information Techaology expenses 17026 445,67
Legal ard professsonal charges 11529 234
Miscellanepus expenses 62 55 26.56
TIT64 192.97

311 Awditors' Remuneration (cxcheding goods and service tax)
Statuinry audit 1.50 1.50
Tax andit 0.50 0.50




Spocto Solutions Private Limited
otes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 022
(A aevomats are i fadian Rupees Lokhs, excopt share dalo amd as sured)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 51 March 2021

32 Income tax
(50 accounting pelicy im Mote 3D

A Amount recognised in statement of profit and los

Carrent tax {a}
Cusrent period 1B5.00 2440
Deferred tax (b) £
Anrbutable ta:
COrigination and reversal af iemporary dillerences -E1 518
Tax expense of continuing @ peratiens (8+(b) 30469 259,08
B. Income tax recogniced in sther comprehensive income
Year ended 31 Mareh 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Before tax  Tax {expense) Mt of tax Before tax Tax (expense) et of tax
hemefit benefit
Remeasurement of defined benefil lability (asses) [27.76) .99 {20TTH (1.97) .50 i1.47)
(27.76) .90 (2077} [LET) 050 {1.47)
£
. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Prafit hefore tax 1,344 8] 177.53
Tax using the Company's domestic @y rae 2517 135 46 2517% 44 68
Effect of!
Waon deductible expenses 04T B335 .00 -
Chanpe in tempocary differences 231% 30z f.53% 11 60
Tax ot loas carried forward o fubare vears 0,00 = -14 98% (26600
Onhers 140t 1887 k0% =
Effective tax rate 19.35% 394,70 16, T2% IS‘JSL

D Recognised deferred tax assefs and lishilities
Deeferred tax assets and lkabilities are attributablbe to the felowing

Dieferred fas assets Deferred taz lisbilities Net deferved tax assets’ [linbilithes)
Yesrepded  Year ended Year ended  Year emded Year ended Year emied
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 Mﬂ 2033 ¥ March 2021 31 March 3022 31 March 2021
Property, plant and equipment - - 2138 468 (21.35) 15.65)
Provisims - employes benefits 1383 336 - - 15.83 334
Allowance for eradit loas 1.33 1.39 - = 4 133 139
Orthsers: 443 1.85 = = 443 1.85
et deferred tax (nssets) liabilities 19.59 ] 1138 5.65 {1.75) [
Movement in temparary differences
Hal. =5 at Recognised in Bl x5 af Recognised in Bal a at
1 April 2020 Statement of (] 31 March 2021 Statement of oCl 31 March 022
profit and loss pmm and lass
Praperty, plant and equipiment - (5 65) - (5.65) (1570 B (21.35}
Pravisicns - employee bemefits 445 [1.59) 0.50 136 348 599 1383
Allowance fix credin loss 119 B2l - 138 (006} - 133
DOithers = B3 = 1.85 158 - 443

564 (5.18) 030 0.95 (.70 [ 11,751
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33 Financial imstruments - Fair value and risk managemest
A Accounting classification and fair values
The fllowing table shows the carmying amounts and Fxir vahues of financial assets and financial liakilities, including their levels in the fair valne lierarchy.

As at 31 March 2022

Amertised cost Py TR o) fir vale
Financisl assets: %
lovestmends - 13.012.78 13,012.78 1301278
Loans 6.03 - 603 - 6.03
Trade receivables 1.506.53 - 1.606,53 | 606 53
Cash ard cash equivalents 132787 - 132787 132787
Bank balances other than those mentioned in cash and cash equivalents abo ELEY | - .9 2991
(ther financial asels 6217 . 6217 6217
Fimancial liabilities:
[zase Liahilities 869 65 - BA% 65 BO9.65
Trade payables 128567 - 1.253.67 1,255 67
As &t 31 March 2021

Amortised cost L AR Total fair value
Finamcial asseis:
Loans 100 - 1.04 1.04
Trade receivables 23284 - 23284 23284
Cash and cash equivalents 254.84 - 25484 25484
Cther financial aswes %90 - 34,90 e
Financial liabilities:
Bomowings 663 43 = 66345 66345
Lense Linhilities 131.77 . 137.77 137.77
Trade payahles A36.07 . A36.07 43607
As at 1 April 2020

Amortised cost pviee ST 1) faie value
Fimancinl assets:
Laoans P 4 56 - 4 15 486
Trade receivables ¥ 10548 - 103 48 103 48
Cash and cash equivalents 51 . 511 511
Orther financial assets 11.50 - 11.50 11,50
Financial linbilities: v
Barrowings T3L25 - T30.25 13025
Trade payables 61,55 - 60,55 60,55
The fair value hiemrchy of assets and liabilities ns ot March 31, 2022 is as follows:

As at Fair valae messurement at end of the vear nsing
Facticulure 31 March 2022 Level | Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
Investments in Mutual Funds 13,012.78 13.012.78 - -
Majority of mvestments of the Company are fadr valwed based on Level | inpaits, These i inclades i in liquid mutual find units

There are na financial asssts and liahilities as at 31 March 2021 and 1 Agril 2020 which are measured at fair value threugh profitioss ar other
comprehensive imcome.
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33 Financial instruments - Fair valee and rish management {continoed)
B. Financial risk mansagement

The Company has exposure 10 the following risks arising from finamnicial instruments:

o) credit risk (see (BE K

b Higuiddity risk {see (BN

) market risk {3ee (BHiv)), and

4 currency risk (3ot (BHv)L ..

L Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directars has overall responsibility for the establishment amd oversight of the Company s risk management framewaork. The oard
of directors along with the top management are responsibile for deveboping and manitaring the Comgpany's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established 10 identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls
and tp monitee rigks and adherence io limits. Risk management policics and sysions are reviewed regularty to reflect changes i markst condiisons and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and managemend standards and procedures. ims to maintain a disceplingd and constructive
cantral envircmment in which all employees underitand their rales and ohligations.

The Company's audit commities oversses how management monitors. complinnce with the Company's risk management policies and procedunes, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relatiom 1o 18¢ risks faced by the Company,

i Credit risk
Credit risk I!]h:ristnfﬁmmid]mhmampuwifncmmuwmﬂmﬂlwzﬁmiﬂ instrurment fails to meet its contrachual obligations, and
arises principally Bom mtamwund:mmh]nmmmmhdrmumﬂ odher financeal assets.

munwummdihamwmmptmmmm“m
The maximum exposare 1o credit tisk for trade and oiteer receivobles are = fullows:

Carrying amsunt
As ol As al As at
31 March 3022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Investmens 13,012.78 - -
Leans 603 1.00 486
Trade receivahles 1.606.53 232 &4 103 .48
Cash and cash equivalees 1,327.87 25484 511
Banik halances other than these menticned in cash and cash equivalents abeve 39.01 = =
Crther financial asscis 62.17 39540 1150
1605528 518,56 24 95

Trade receivables i

The Company has developed gusdelines for 1he management of eredit risk from trade reccivables. The Company's sxpasare i eredit nisk is influenced
mainky by the individual charactenstics of sach customer, The demegraphics of the customer, incduding the default msk of the industry and couriry in
which the customes operates, also has an influerce on credit sk asessment.

The customers of the Company have good credit ratings and are subjected fo credit assessments as & precautionary measure, and the adberence of &l clicnts
ta paymend due dabes is monitored o0 an on-gaing hasis, therehy practcally elimingting the risk of defauli. Credit risk is managed through eredit approvals,
extablishing credit limits and continuously mondtaring the creditwprihiness of eusipmers to which the Company prants credit 1ems in the normal eourse of
husin=e The Company establishes an allowancs for deubaful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incumed losses in respect of the
Company's irade recenvbles, cenain boans and advances and other fimancial nssets.
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33 Financisl instruments - Fair valee and risk management (continaed )

Trade receivables (continued )

Expasures 1o customers outstanding at the end of each reparting period are reviewed by the Company 10 determine incured and expected credit losses
Historical trends of impaiment of trade recervables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicators affecting
customers of the Company have not undetgone any substamtial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credst losses & continue,
Further, management believes that the unimpaired amousts that are past due by more than 90 days are stall colleetible in full, based on historical payment
behavior and edensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impai it lsss at the reporting dates related to several cussomers that have defaulted on their
payments ks the Company and are not expected to be able 1o pay their ousstanding balances, mainky due 10 sconamic GicumstEances

The Comgany’s expasure to credif risk for trade receivables by relaticnship is as follows:

As st Asal As 3l

31 March 2023 31 Maorch 2021 1 April 2020

Third party cusiomers 1.577.05 23284 103 48
Relsted parties 3477 c 3

Cash snd cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions & &t the reporting dates which bas been measured on i
12-manth expected koss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial instiuticas are evalusicd by the management on an ongoing basis and is
considersd 1o be good with kow credit msk.

Bank balances sther than those mentioned in cosh and cosh equivalents abave

The Company held deposits with eredit worthy banks ond financial institutions as at the reparing dases which has been measured oo the 13-monih
expecied lnss basis. The credit worthiness of such benks snd financial institutions are evaluased by the management on an engoing basis and is considered
10 be good with low eredit sk

Onher finamcial sssels

This bal primarily itule af ity deposits. The credit worthiness of such depasits are svaluated by the management on an ongoing hasis and is
conssdered o be pood with low credit risk.
i, Liquidity risks

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Compary will encounter difficulry in mesting the obligations associated with s financial liahilities that are sefiled by
dedlivering cash or another financial asser. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensare, as far a5 possible, that it will have sufficient
liguidity 10 meet its lisbilities when they are due, under both nonmal and stressed conditions, without mcusring unacceptable losses or rsking damage to the
Company's reputaison,

The following are the remaining contracrual msturities of financial liahilities af the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, including
contractual imerest

Acs mi 31 March 2022

Carrving % Total 6 months 612 1-2 Mure than
amaant or less muonths VEAS. 1 vears
Barrowings - - - - = .
Trade payables 1,255.67 1,255,567 1,253 67 - 5 -
1,255.67 1 155.67 1,255.67 - a = =
As at 31 March 2021
Carrying Total & months 612 1-2 Muore than
AMANET or kss manths VEArs 1 years
Haorrowigs 3. 4% 663,45 G345 - . -
Trade payables 436,07 A36.07 434.07 - - -
M e = = =
As at | April 2020
Carrying Total & months 612 1-2 More than
amount or less manths years __ I years
Borrowings 73025 73025 730,25 - - -
Trade payahles B0.55 658 60.55 " - "
Oeher financial [iabilities - - - . - =
79080 790.80 790,80 - - -
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33 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk maragement (contineed)

v Market risks
Market rigk is the risk of loss of future eamings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of 4 financial instrament. The
value of a financial instrument may change as a resull of changes in 1bhe mienest fates, Mﬂymhﬂg:mudmhmrhdmih!ﬂmﬂm

risk sensitive instruments. Market nisk is ottributable to all market risk sensitive fi luding foreign curmemcy receivables and payables
The Company is exposed 1o market risk primanly related to foreign sxchange rate risk (currency nisk), mnberest rate nsk and the market value ﬂf its
imvestments. Thus the Company’s exposure to market risk i a functios of investing and borrowing activities and re g g and of 14
activities in foreign currencies i

v, Currency risk

Forelgn curtency nisk amse in AED denominated fransactions maimdy from monetary recenvables and npnﬂﬂ]ugm fise wmfﬂl{,‘: rane fluctzaton risk.
The Group’s major exposuse in fofelgn curmency 15 in respect of bormowings which is avaiked based on 3 of aptimi of averall cost of
homowing.

As at 31 March 2022

Financial assets/ {Habilitles) AED Tutal
Trade receivables ENL EN L
Trade payables - -
Net assets | (liabilities) 3.19 3.19
As at 51 March 2021

Fimamcial assets/ {linbilities) AED Tatal
Trade receivables 087 087
Trade payables - =
Nt assets [ {llabilities) .57 [T
As at | April 2020

Fimancial assets’ {limbilities) AED Tatal
Trade receivahles 0,60 060
Trmde payables - =
Net assets [ (liahilities) (1] 060

Semsitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening {weakeming) of the INR against AED at 31 March would have affacted the measurement of financial instruments
dempeninated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or bass by the amounts shown below. This analysis assurmes thal all other varisbles, in
pamticular imierest rates, remain constant and ignores amy HT':IH'N'DfthWI&T sabes and purchases.

Prafit or Loss
Sirengtheni Weak
As ot 31 March 2022
AED (1% mavement ) ; 003 (DL0E)
As at 31 March 2021
AED [ 1% marvement ) Q.o ooy

As at | April 2020
AED (1% mervement ) .ol (0.01)
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34 Ind AS 116z leases
{See accounting palicy in Mote 3K
A comtract is, or contains, a lease if the comtmel comveys the nght o comtrol 1he use of an identifisd asset for a period of ime in exchange for
consideration.

Effective 1 April 2020, 1he Comgany adopied Ind AS 116" Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2020 using modified
retrospestive approach, cffective anmual reporting period beginning 1 April 2000 at trarsiticn, lease liabilities were measured at the presert value of the
remaining bease payments, discounted at the Company's incremental barowing mte as a1 | Apeil 2020. Right-of-use assets are measured at an smaut
equal 1o lease lishilities in accordance with Ind AS 116 adjusted for prepayments :

O tramsition, gince the Company does nat have any gqualifying leases as at 1 April 2020, the Right of Use’ aiset and a Jease liability is Mil, Subsequently
in FY 2020=21, the new dard resulted in recogniti 1 of ‘Right of Lise' asset of MR 13042 lakhs and a lease liability of INR 137.77 lakhs.

The fisllowing is the summary of practical expedients elecied on initial application:

n. Applied the exemption not b0 recopnize right-of-use assets and liabilies for beases with Jess than 12 menths of lease term on the date of initial
application

b. Excluded the initiad direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset a1 the date of initial application.

(i) Right of e assets
Refer note 3 for detniled breakup of dght of use assete and amortisation thereon

{ii) Lease Liabilities

As ol s at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Maturity analysis of Lease Liability
Mo later than cme year 23481 4672
Laber (han cne Ve&r but net bater than four years 634 84 9105
Later thzn fous years & -
Total sndisconnted bense linbilities. BETES 131,77
(ki) Amounts recegnised in Profit and Loss
Yeear ended Year ended
31 March 2022 3] March 2021
Interest on lease liabilities 51.78 7.14
Amanization of right of use assets (refer nate 5) 11804 18.68
Expenses relating 1o ghom term leases 5248 1268
{iv) Ambun's recognised in statement of cash Mows
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 51 March 2021
Toral cash ouiflow rowards lense payments {excluding shani-term bease payments) . BOTT 854
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35 Related parties
Parent and ultimate controlling party

The parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company as at 31 March 2022 18 Credavenug Private Limited
A List of related parties with whom tramsactions have taken place duriog the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Mature of relationship

Holding company

Fallow Subsidiary

Key mravagement persanne

Drirector

Drirector

Drirector

Drirector

Eelative of Director

hhers

Entity in which KMP has a sigmficant influence
Entity in which KMP has o significant influence

B Transactions with key managemeni personnel

Remunerathon®
Sumeet Srivastava
Puja Srivastava
Sandhva Avdhoot Thali

MName of the related party
Credavenuwe Private Limited

Credaverse Sacurities Private Limited ”

Sumeet Srivasiava
Puja Srivastava
Sandhya Avdhoot Thali
Craurav Kurmar
Avdhoot Thali

Arrise BPO Solutions Private Limited
5F55 Informatics Solutions LLC

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021

309.36 18.50
146,18 1847
30,90 792

*+ Amount atiributable 1o pest employment benefits and compensated absences have nat been diselosed as the same cannot be identifisd distmealy

n the actuarial valuation

Compensation of the Company’s’ key managerial personnel inclisdes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions 1o post-employment defined

henefit plan (refer note 20 and node 28).

C Transactions during the year other than those with key management personnel

Sale of services
Arrise BPO Solutions Private Limited

Consultancy Fee

Sandhya Awdhoot Thali
Information Technology Expenses
SPS55 Informatics Solutons LLC

Purchase of fixed assets
SP55 Informatics Solutsons LLC

D Year end balances

Balances due from related partics
Trude receivables
Arrise BPO Solutions Private Limited

Balances due to related parties
Unsecured Loan
Sumes=t Srivastava
Puja Srivastava
Sandhya Avdhoot Thali

Trade Payables

SP5S Informatics Selutions LLC
Dther Liabilities

Credavenue Private Limited

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

3543 -
17.87 14.50
; 6143 -
96.94 -
Asat As al As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

3477 £ =

| 495 30

- S0 RO 93.75

e 7426 53116
6143 = =
7788 A -

The year end balances below includes foreign exchange gain / loss arising on restatemment of foreign curmency balances, whersver applicable,
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36 Operating segmen &

A Basis for segmentation
ﬂucm-rpm}-uout_\-mgagpdjndmbus':mssmprm-id.cm‘io:smnmumm-wﬂmg’wﬂuﬂmuamrywwwamhﬁmfar
recovery of receivables by uwing analvtical and modern digital methods, Therefore there are no separate reportable segmenss as per Ind AS =108 -
Oiperating Segment.

With regard to geographic presence, the Company has customers from UAE apart from India

B Geogruphicsl information
The Compary is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external cusiomers is broken down by location of the customers and information
ahout iz non-current assets other than Tinancial insinements, deferred tax assels and post employment benefit asset by location are detwiled hebow:

Year emded Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Hevenue from sale of services
India 5474M 1,27TR.E3
Oatside India 224 28 108.14
Total £,700.08 138698
Asat As at As at
31 March 2032 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Mon-curreni assets
India 161103 393.28 128.14
Onutside India - - -
Total 1.611.03 39328 128.14

€ Najor customer
The Company receives 10% or mone of its revenues from the below customers.

Year ended Percentage tn

Mame of the Company Nature March 31, 2022 L ot
Aoiis Bank Limited HRendering of services 218125 382
TCIC] Bank Limmited Rendering of services 1,187.71 20 84%
HDFC Bank Limsted Rendering of services 6896 11.55%

Year ended Percentage to
Name of the Company Ty March 31,2021 total s
Aois Bank Limeted i Rendening of services 331.67 3E31%
RAL Hank Limited : Rendering of services 22083 15.52%
ICIC] Bank Limited Rendening of senvices 201.98 14.56%
TW5 Credit Senaces Limated Rendening of services 135.65 9.78%

37 Ohher statatory information '

{i) The Campary does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been mitiated of pending against the Company for holding any
property.

(i) The Company ks not traded or imvested in Crvpio currency o virtuad currency during the fimancial year.

[iii} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds 10 any persons of entities, including foreign entiies (Intermediaries) with the
upderstanding that the [nermediary shall:
1} directly or indirestly lend or invest m other persons of entibies adentified 10 any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Liumate
Beneficiaries) or
2) provide any guaranles, sacumity of the like 1o or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

{iv)] The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether
recarded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
1} directly or indirecily Jend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pany (Uhimate
Benefbeiaries) or
2} provide any guarantee, secumty or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficianes.

{v) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of sccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 (such as, scarch or survey o amy ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961,

) e Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet 10 be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond stafutory period
[vii) The Compasny does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or sectson 360 of Comparics
Act, 1956 daring the year.
(wiit) There are no Scheme of Armangements that has been approved by the Competent Authonty in terms of sections 230 10 237 of the Companics At
2013,
{ix) The Company has no borrowings from banks of financaal instiwtions an the basis of security of current asscis
{x) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank o financial Institution ar other lender.
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38 Explanation of tramsition to Ind AS

As stated in Mote 24, these are the Company's first financial stalements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Company had prepared its financial siatements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the
Act and other relevant provigions of the Act {'previous GAAP')

The accounting policies set oul i Mote 3 have been applied in prepaning these financial staiements for the vear ended 31 BMarch 2022 including the
comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the openirg Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 1 Apnl 2020,

]npmpsmgmlldﬁ..ibulmesl:ﬂgml,&pﬁlznlaudinmlhnmt'Llfmnnﬁunl’utuﬂmdﬂd!] March 2019, the Company
has adjusted amourts reponed previously in financial statements prEpa.r:l! in accordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal
:djmumhthgr P ‘m ta ﬂg,"'  siat p J in accordance with previows GAAP, amd how the tramsition from
previows GA AP 1o Ind AS has affected the ['-U[IFN'I-} financial posstion, fi fisancial performance and cash flows.

Oprional exemptions availed amd mandatory exceptions.
In preparing these financial sisements, the Company has applied the below mentionsd optional exemptions and mandatory exceplions.

A. Dptional exemptions availed

1. Praperty plant and equipment and intangible assels
As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:
(i) measure an ilem of property, plant and equipment a1 the date of transition 1 its fxir value and use that fair value as its desmed cost al that dute
(i) wse a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of propeny, plant and equipment at or befare the dase of transition as deemed cost at the date of the
tevalustion, provided the revaluation was, &t the date of the revaluation, troadly compasable 10:

— fair value;

= e cost of depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusied 1o reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index.
The elections under (i} and (i} shove are also available for intangible assets that mects the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38, Intangible Asses,
{inchuding reliable ment of original cost); and criteria in Ind AS 3 for revaluation {including the existence of an active market).
(ti) use carrying values of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and imvestment propesties 2= on the date of transbon to Ind AS (which are
measured in accordance with previows GAAF and after making adjusiments relating o docommissioning lisbilitees presenibed under Ind AS 100 of there
haxs been no change in its functional currency on the date of fransition.

As permitied by Ind A5 101, the Company has elecied to continue with the carrying values under provious GAAFP for all the items of propesty, plant and
equipment. The same election has been made in respect of intangible asscts also.

B. Mandatory exceptions

1. Estimates

A per Ind AS 101, an entity"s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition (o Ind AS at the e of the comparative penod presented m
the emity"s first Ind AS financial stalements, &s the case may be, should be consisient with estimatcs made for the same date in accardance with the
previoas GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were i error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences

Mg per Ind AS 101, where applcaton of Ind A3 requires an emtity 1o make certain estimates thai were pot required under previeus GAAFP, those
estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed s the date of tramsition (for preparing opening [nd AS bal sheet) or at the end of the
comparative period { for presenting comparntive information 2 per Ind A5).
The Company’s estimates undes Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates comsidered in preparation of the financial statements
that were mot required under the previous GAAP are listed bebowr

= Impairment of financial assets based on the expocied cradii loss model.

— Dtermination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried al amoertised eost

L Classification and messurement af financial assels

Ind AS 1] requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of fucts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition.
Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted st amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing ot the date of
iransition if retmospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist om the date of eransition,
Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amostised cost bes been done retrospectively exeept whiere the scame is impracticable.
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38 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continwed )

Reconciliation of equity
Note  As af date of transition 1 April 2020 As at 31 March 2021
Previous  Adjustment on Ind AS Previans Adjustment on Ind AS
GAAP*  transition to Ind AS GAAF* transition to Ind
AS
ASSETS
Mon=current assels 3
Property, pland and equipment BBl - & &1 2806 . 096
Right of Use Asset - - - - 13042 130.42
Cnber intangible assets 109 83 - 105 83 194.00 - 154.00
Financial assets
Loans - - - 235 {235) -
Chher financial assets 1150 - 11.50 - - -
Deferred tax assets C (0100 164 564 [5.65) Gubl 095
Tax xsspeis (net) - = = 49.58 - 44 58
Total num current axsels 128.14 564 133.78 269.25 134.67 403.91
Current assels
Financial assets
Trade receivables B 121.18 (17700 10348 bERET) (5.5%) 23284
Cash and cash equivalents =1 B 511 25484 - 254 84
Luoans 486 - 4 86 1.00 - 1.00
Orther financial assets 26,10 - 5810 B0 - 30,00
Cither current assels - - = 17.90 - 17.90
Total current assets 157.25 (17.70) 139,55 55201 (5.53) 546,48
Tuotal assets 285,39 (12.06) 173.33 821.25 129.13 250,39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2.00 - 200 200 - 2.00
Cither equaity D (33406 (16.77) (570.83) (402 .47) 121.98) 1424.45)
Total equity (S5L.06) {16.77) (568.83) (400.47) {21,08) {422.45)
Liabilities ;
Nan=current liabilities
Provisions. {0.00) 4.71 471 000 12.12 13.19
Total mon-current linhilities [ 4.71 4.7 [I] 13.19 13.19
Current labilities
Firancial lisbalities
Bormowings 730.28 - T30.25 663,45 - 663,45
Lease Liahility - - - - 13177 13777
Trade payables 60,55 - 60.55 43607 - 436,07
Oiher fimancial liabilites - - - - - =
Provisions - - - - 0.16 016
Deferred Tax Liabikity - - - - - =
Criber carrent liabilities 46,65 - 46 65 12230 - 122.20
Tutal current linhilities R37.45 - H3T.45 1.221.72 137.93 1.359.65
Tutal Halilities 037,45 471 H4L16 1.211.71 15112 1,573.84
Total equity and liabilities 218539 (12.06) 373.33 811.25 119.13 950,39

*The previous GAAP figures kave been rechussified 1o conform 1o Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose af thas note.
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3% Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)

Reconciliation of tota] comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2021
Year ended 31 March 2021
Note  Previous GAAP  Adjustment on Tl AS
transition to Ind

AS
Revenue [rom operations 1,386 98 - 1,386.9%
Criher incoms 1.67 1281 7 14.28
Total revenuoe 1,348.65 12.61 1,400.26
Eapenses
Cost of serices 460 69 - 460069
Employes benefits expense A 463 54 6.67 50051
Finance costs 0.0 714 T14
Diepreciation and amertisation expense 4373 1869 6242
Orther expenses B 208 A5 (15.68) 19297
Tuotal expenses 1.206.91 16.82 1.22573
Profit before income tax 181.74 4.21) 177.53
Current tax 24.50 - 24,50
Deferred tax (benefit) hoss c 5.65 (0.46) 518
lncome LAY EXpense 3015 (1,4} 2968
Prafit for the year 151.59 (3.74) 147.85
Dther comprebensive income
Teems that will nal be reclassified subsequently o profit or boss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liahiliny | assets) A - (1.87) (1L8T)
Income tax relating bo items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss C - 0.50 0.50
Tutal comprehensive meomse for the year 15159 {5:21) 146.37

Males 1o the reconeiliation
A Remessurement of defined benelit lialdlity (asset)

Under the previous GAAP, i.e. actsarial gains and Tosssez and the return on plan acets, exeluding amounts included in the net inberest expense an the net
defined benefit liability was forming part of the profit o koss for the year. However under Ind AS 19, 1 15 recogrised in other comprehensive income.

The impact anising from the change is summarized as follows:

Year ended
31 March 2021
Statement of profit and loss
Employee benelits expenses (197
(1.97)
Onher comprehens ive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit linbility/ { nssets) 197
1.97

Adjustment before income tax =

D1 April 2020031 Mareh 2021
Balance sheet t o

Adjustment to retained eamings = =
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B Loss allowance

On transition 1o Ind AS, the compary bas recognised impainment loss on tade receivables, based on expected credit loss model as required by Ind AS

105,
Year ended
31 March 2021
Statement of profit and loss
Loss allowance on trade receivable (12 16)
Adjustment before income tax ; (12.16)

01 April 2020 31 March 2021

Balance sheet
Traide receivabiles (17.70% [5.53)
Deferred tax
The impact arising from the change i3 summanized as follows:
Year ended
31 March 2021
Seatement of profit and loss
Deferred tax impact om chanpe in tax rate -
Deferred 1ax impact on expected credit loss 3.06
Dieferred tax impact om temporary differences (5.52)
146}
Orher comprehensive income
Income tax relating b items thad will no be reclassified sobsequently 1o profit or loss 0.50
.50
Adjustment before income tux a3

01 April 2020 31 March 2021

Balance sheet
Deferred tax assets 564 .60
Adjustment to retained earnings 564 G560

Hetained earnings
The above changes {decreased) increased total equity as follows

01 April 202031 March 2021

Provision on account of expected credit lass {17700 1508}
Provision for Grafaity (4.71) (11.38)
Ind AS 116 Lemses - (1015}
Deferred tax impact on the adjustments 564 463
Adjustment 1o retained earnings {1677} (11.98)
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
Year ended

March 31, 2021
Profit after tax as per previous GAAT 151,59
Ad justments:
Cirataity (BETH
Diepreciation on RO Asset {1865y
Interest on lease ability (7.14)
Interest income on Security Depasits 12.61
Rent expense 1568
Dreferred tax 046
Total sdjustments (3.74)
Frofit aficr tax as per Ind AS 147.85
(ther comprehensive income (1.47)
Tuotal comprebensive income as per Ind AS 146,38
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3 Iml AS 115 » Revenue from contracts with customers
With effeer from | April 2020, the Compamy has adopted Ied A5 115 ‘Revenue froms Contracts with Customers’ whach istroduces o new fve-step approach 1o
measuring and recognising revense from contracts with customers. Under Tnd AS 115, revenune is recognised of am amount that reflects the conssderation 1o which
an entity expects to he entithed th exchange for services o a customer,
The Campany bas opted for the modified retrospective application permitted by Ind AS 115 upon sdoption of new standasd. Accordmply, the standand has been
applied for the vear ended 31 March 2021 onby [ie. the initis] application period). Modified retrospective application also requires the recopnition of cumulative
impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on 2l contracts as a1 April 2020 “wransiten daie’) in equity and the impact on sech transition date is not material

Also, the Company has elocicd to use the practical expedient that there is 1o financing compsnent involbved when the credit period offered to clisiomers is less
ihan 1} months

Prioe to adoption of Tnd A% 115, the Company's revenue primarily comprised of revene from sale of services, The recognition of thess revenue sresms is largely
unchanged by Ind A5 115,

40 Micre and small
The Ministry of Micro, mulmmm&mmu“aoﬂummw 28 Ampust, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small

Emterprises should mentiom in thedr cormespoasd with it cusi 3 the Entrep dum Number as allecated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the Micro. Small and Medion Enserprise Development Act, Zﬂﬂﬁqwm} The disclogare in respect of the amounts payable 10 such
enferprises as & 31 March 2020 has been made in the f d hased o i ion received and available with the Compary. Further in view of the

Management, the impact af interest, if any, thal may be pavable in sccordance with the provisions of the ASt is not expectad 10 be material. The Company has not
received any claim for interest from any sapplier as at the halance sheet date.

As at As at As al
Fontuey 31 March 2022 31 March 20211 April 2020
() the principal amoust and the interest due thereon (1o be shown separately) remaining unpaid 1o any - . -
supplier at ibe end of each sccounting year

() the amoumst of interess paid by the bayer in terms of saction 16 of tse Micro, Small and Medium - = =
Enscrprises Development Act, 2006, alomg with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
heyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

(& the amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay m making payment (which have been - =
paid but bevond the appointed day during the year) but without sdding the inserest specified under the
tlicro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dévelopment Aet, 206,

() the ameunt of imterest acirwed and remaining unpaid st the end of cach accourting year, and = =

(&) the amount of fanber imierest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, umtil pach - - &
date when the mierest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallkwance of a deductible expenditure usder section 25 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Developent Act, 2006, v

41 The following are analytical ratios for the yesrs ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 021

Year ended Year emded

Particulars Nunmserator Denominator March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 Variance

Current Ratia {a) Current Assels Carrent Linbilities am 044 1956%

Dweba-Equity Ratio (b Total Dbt Share Hoklers Equity - -157 -1
Earni Imterest paymecst on

Dt Servics Covernge Ratio (c) HH;::']MM heomrowings, Lease prymenrs, L.65 2. 4%
Principal repayment

Rueturn on Eguity Profit for the year Averape Shareholder's Equity e -Ta 1%

Trade neceivables mrmover ratk (d) Revense from aperations  Average Trade Receivahles 1.55 206 -15%%

et Capilal Twrmover Rauio (e) Revense from operations Wiorking Capital o7 (021} -132%

Met Profit Ratie Profit fior the yesr Revenug from cperations 1% 1% 6%

Feetum oo Capital Emploved () : sl i Capital Emplayed A.75% &4 BT T4%

Fetam oo Investment Income pencrated fom  bwested fimds in traasary 145% - 1%

invesied funds imvestmeits

Reason fer Yariances:

(&) During the year, the Company has made fresh isswe of shates oo 23 February 2022, The funds received by the Company an 25 February 2022 is pantly wiilised
fun settling the bomowings and balasce is available in Musual Funds as at 31 Mareh 2022, lmprovement in Ratios such as, Current ratio, Debt Equity Ratia, Db
Service Coversge Ratio, Return on Equity, Mot Capital Tumover Ratio and Return oo Capital employed can bs atiributed 1o this.

(b) The improvement in trade receivable tamvoer ratio is mainly dee to loxreass in tumover in FY 2021-22 and mpeovemest in recoverability from cusiomers
when compared fo previous year.

{c) The impeovement i Net profit ratio is mainly due to increase i tumaver in FY 2021 DWHMWHMWWWMFWP'
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42 Impact of COVID-19 pandemibe
The eubreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India hae coatributed o a significant decline and volatility in the global and Indian markets and
slowdown in the economic activities. The Company has not identified any major impact of Covid-19 on s financials for the period ended March 31, 2022 as well as
from the subsequent events till the date of board meeting.

However, considering the wave of virus spread continaes across the country, the Compamy's | with & 1, several Inckdown exiensions in specific areas
of the country, and the Telated impact on the busmesses of their customers and vendors. The Company management will contine 1o monstor the econemic cffects of
the pandemic, inchuding recovery of nssets, and take steps to improve operational and financial efficiencies, the ulimate impact may be different from that presently
estimated and would be recognized in the books of account when maserial changes ie condithons arise.

43 Previous yvear fizures have been regrouped’ reclassified, where necessary, 1o conform curment vear's classification
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